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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register Bulletin, How
to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for
"not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the
instructions. Place additional certification comments, entries, and narrative items on continuation sheets if needed (NPS Form 10-900a).

1. Name of Property

Historic name Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company

Other names/site number C.E. Vincel Pontiac; Bowersox Insurance Company

Name of related Multiple Property Listing Historic Auto-Related Resources in St. Louis [Independent City], MO

2. Location
Street & number 3537 S. Kingshighway Boulevard N/A not for publication
City or town St. Louis N/A vicinity

State Missouri Code MO County St Louis (Independent City) Code 510 Zip code 63139

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

| hereby certify that this _x nomination ___ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards
for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property _ x__meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property
be considered significant at the following level(s) of significance:

____national ___ statewide x_local

Applicable National Register Criteria: _x_ A B _x C D
J,M/u ZTYL@/LQ UNE 5/z9)2015
Signature of certifying official/Title Toni M. Prawl, Ph.D., Deputy SHPO ! Date

Missouri Department of Natural Resources
State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property __ meets ___ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official Date

Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification
| hereby certify that this property is:

entered in the National Register determined eligible for the National Register
determined not eligible for the National Register removed from the National Register

Other (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.)

Category of Property
(Check only one box.)

X | private X building(s)
public - Local district
public - State site
public - Federal structure

object

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
1 0 buildings
0 0 sites
1 0 structures
0 0 objects
2 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

Commerce: specialty store

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

Work in progress

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)

Spanish Revival

X NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION ON CONTINUATION PAGES

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.)

foundation: concrete

walls: concrete, brick

roof: concrete

other:
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Significance
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National
Register listing.) Ccommerce
A Property is associated with events that have made a Architecture
X significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics Period of Significance
X of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses high
artistic values, or represents a significant 1927 - 1944

and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

I:l D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information

; : : : Significant Dates
important in prehistory or history.

1927
Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)
Property is: Significant Person

(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.)

A Owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes. N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

B removed from its original location.

C a birthplace or grave.

D acemetery. Architect/Builder

Wunderlich, John Peter / Architect

E areconstructed building, object, or structure.

F acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving significance
within the past 50 years.

X | STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ON CONTINUATION PAGES

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography (Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:
X _preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been X State Historic Preservation Office
requested) ~ Other State agency
____previously listed in the National Register ___ Federal agency
____previously determined eligible by the National Register ~ Local government
___designated a National Historic Landmark ~University
~ recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # __x_Other
~ recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # Name of repository: Landmarks Association of St. Louis, Inc.

recorded by Historic American Landscape Survey #

Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned): _ N/A
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property Less than one acre

Latitude/Longitude Coordinates
Datum if other than WGS84:
(enter coordinates to 6 decimal places)

1 38.594657 -90. 271675 3

Latitude: Longitude: Latitude: Longitude:
2 4

Latitude: Longitude: Latitude: Longitude:
UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

NAD 1927 or NAD 1983

1 3

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
2 4

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description  (On continuation sheet)

Boundary Justification  (On continuation sheet)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte Ruth Keenoy, Preservation Specialist

organization Landmarks Association of St. Louis, Inc. date May 19, 2015
telephone 314-421-6474

zip code 63101

street & number 911 Washington Avenue, Suite 170

city or town St. Louis state MO

e-mail rkeenoy@landmarks-stl.org

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:

e “Maps:
0 A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
o A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all
photographs to this map.
» Continuation Sheets
» Photographs
» Owner Name and Contact Information
» Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement:  This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement : Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept. of the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.
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Photographs

Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels (minimum), 3000x2000 preferred,
at 300 ppi (pixels per inch) or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map. Each photograph must be numbered and that
number must correspond to the photograph number on the photo log. For simplicity, the name of the photographer, photo date,
etc. may be listed once on the photograph log and doesn’t need to be labeled on every photograph.

Photo Log:

Name of Property: Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company

City or Vicinity: St. Louis

County: St. Louis Independent City State:. MO
Photographer: Ruth Keenoy

Dates

Photographed: November 20, 2014, March 13, 2015

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera:

1 (of 22). Facade (east) and south elevations; view northwest.
2. Facade (east) elevation; view west.

3. Detail, east elevation; view northwest.

4. Tower bay, east elevation; view southwest.

5. South elevation; view northeast.

6. West elevation; view northeast.

7. North elevation and parking lot; view southwest.

8. First floor, primary entrance; view northeast.

9. Detail, first floor terrazzo; interior floor west of entrance.

10. Detail of entry terrazzo pattern prior to removal of non-historic finishes.
11. First floor, south wall; view south.

12. First floor, northwest corner garage bay; view northwest.
13. Platform first floor with sunken room north end; view west.
14. First floor; view southwest.

15. First floor; view northwest.

16. First floor; southwest (including staircases).

17. Second floor; view southeast.

18. Second floor; view southwest.

19. Second floor; view west.

20. Second floor ramp; view northeast.

21. Ramp to roof; view east.

22. Penthouse on roof, northwest.

Figure Log:

Area of concentration for most automobile dealerships on Kingshighway.
First-floor display windows; view northwest.

Second floor clerestory windows, original, south wall.

First floor clerestory windows, original, south wall.

Concrete columns, first floor, southeast.

Concrete ramp, second floor, northwest.

Second floor, ribbed concrete ceiling, southeast.

Original windows, west elevation.

3600 S. Kingshighway.

CoNoTrWNE
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10. 4315 S. Kingshighway.

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24,

Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company in 1928.

Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company in 2014.

Sanborn Map, 1938, Volume 20, Sheet 2020.

Northwest intersection of Locust and 16" Streets, c. 1915 (courtesy, Campbell House Museum).
Plan for Kingshighway Boulevard, redesigned in 1917.

Map illustrating where original owners and architect lived in relation to the dealership.
Kingshighway Hills’ business district, southwest.

Kingshighway Hills’ business district, northwest.

3647 S. Kingshighway.

Sanborn Map, 1950, Volume 20, Sheet 2020. Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company.
Full page advertisement, St. Louis Post-Dispatch, 13 May 1928.

3435 S. Kingshighway.

3500 S. Kingshighway.

3345 S. Kingshighway.
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Property Summary

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is locasé¢@537 South Kingshighway Boulevard
(S. Kingshighway, preferred) in the Independeny GftSt. Louis. The property consists of two
contributing resources — an automobile dealershistructed in 1927 (C) and an asphalt covered
parking lot (C) that bounds the building on thethomhe associated building is a two-story
Spanish Revival style automobile dealership contdiin 1927. The building has a flat roof,
exterior brick walls and a poured concrete fourmatCentered on the primary elevation is a two
and a half-story hipped tower bay with arched wimsloa hipped metal roof and terra cotta
detailing — features that reflect the building’sa8igh Revival influencePhoto 1). The ground

floor area covers 8,965 square feet and the assdqgiarking lot is 10,278 square feet. The
dealership faces east toward Kingshighway, a nisjeflane north/south connector. The south
(side) elevation is flanked by Pernod Avenue, aleggial street. An alley, leading to a rear
garage opening at the building’s northwest corfh@nks the west elevation. The interior
condition of the building clearly demonstratesaitshitectural integrity as an automobile
dealership through original interior finishes sashterrazzo floors and decorative wrought iron
railings in customer areas. Structural elementhk sigsanterior concrete ramps used to move cars
from floor to floor, exposed concrete ceilings, lwand floors, as well as mushroom cap
columns are all intact and visible. The propertinia commercially zoned area on S.
Kingshighway that developed as an automobile rorndiuthe 1920s-1950%i{gure 1).

Integrity Discussion

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company buildingsaconverted from an automobile
dealership to an office building in the early tadrii950s. Recently, interior modifications that
covered the building’s original features from 19814 were removed. The current condition of
the building demonstrates its present conversitmaffice/residential space. Restoration of
original windows and finishes will be completeccompliance with the Secretary of the
Interior's Standards of Rehabilitation. Originalifhes and windows are intact, with exception
of display windows on the facade and south elemafitiese openings were partially infilled
with brick when the building was converted for asean office building in 1954.

The Multiple Property Documentation Form (MPDF) &urto-related resources in St. Louis
provides guidelines for assessing whether formraabile-related buildings retain integrity,
even with alterations, that render them eligibletf® National Register of Historic Places
(NRHP). Using the guidelines created for Automoftistributorships, Dealerships and Retalil
Businesses (Associated Property Types, Sectiomded?29-34), the following discussion
clarifies that the property retains integrity fadividual listing under the MPDF in relation to
Criterion A: Commerce and Criterion C: Architecture
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Based on the MPDF, automobile dealerships mushrstdficient evidence of their historic use,
interior and exterior fabric, and features thatstrate the building’s associations with
automobiles, such as ramps or elevators usedrspoat vehicles from floor to floor within the
building. Additionally, “window openings, whethar the original showroom area or upstairs
must retain their original openings, even if bodrdeger or the windows replaced, providing a
sense of the original fenestration patterh€fiterion C, in particular, requires that propestibe

a good example of a particular style . . . [ant&irepredominant elements of its original design”
and “the original functions of openings should pparent, even if infilled?

Interior modifications made after the period ofrsfigance (i.e., post 1944) have all been
removed with exception of display window infill (asted previously) on the east and south
elevations figure 2). Plans are to restore these windows to theiiralgppearance. Original
fenestration openings are apparent in the buildisgtrent state. Original clerestory lights above
the former display windows are inta€idures 3 and 4. Structural columns are intact and
visible throughout the building-{gure 5). Concrete ramps used to transport cars from the
showroom floor and service area to the roof ar&cindemonstrating the building’s significance
as an auto-related propersigure 6). The only considerable interior alterations after period

of significance (that remain place) are window esates on the building’s east and south
elevations. Despite being partially enclosed, thenings are discernible and the sense of the
original display windows is apparent. As stated/fesly, these bays will be reopened and
restored to their original appearance as the projegresses.

As noted in the associated MPDF, most automotiaetehips were constructed of concrete to
support the automobiles that they housed. Thistmasfor the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car
Company, which retains original concrete floorslimgs, columns and rampgigure 7).
Dealerships were typically altered soon after aetated businesses left the buildings. The most
frequent alteration was enclosure or infill of ttealership’s large display windows. The MPDF
states that “this [change] happened to all knovetrithutorships [and dealerships] . . . most often
it was accomplished by boarding over intact (otipHy) intact windows. In some cases,
however, masonry materials replaced the windowsumiithin the original openings.This was
the case for the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Compdn the facade and south elevation,
large display windows were infilled with brick ihé 1950s. However, original window
fenestrations and openings above the display wisdewmain intact, demonstrating the original
patterns of the windows on these elevations. The(mest) elevation, second story, retains all of
its original windows Figure 8).

'Ruth Keenoy, Karen Bode Baxter, Timothy Maloney Mahdy Ford, “Historic Auto-Related Resources of St
Louis [Independent City], MO\ational Register of Historic Places Multiple PrapeDocumentation Forn2005),
F:30-31.

? Ibid, F:31.

® Ibid, F:30.
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A windshield survey completed in March 2015 of $hgshighway illustrates that former
automobile dealerships have all been altered ientegears, even those that remain in use for
auto-related purposes. Two examples constructedthi Brahm-Mitchellette dealership but
within the period of significance are 3600 S. Kinighway (Ackerman Toyota), constructed in
1929 fFigure 9) and 4315 S. Kingshighway (Rowland Auto Collisi@onstructed in 1938
(Figure 10). Both buildings remain in use as auto-relategertes. Although both examples
retain display window openings, most hold conterapowindows or have been filled with
opaqgue non-historic materials.

Based on the MPDF requirements and the fact that mdomobile dealerships in the City of St.
Louis were modified following the departure of thefiginal auto-related businesses, it is clear
that the former dealership at 3537 S. Kingshighvesgins integrity. The building demonstrates
its period of significance and original use throlgtation, design, setting, materials,
workmanship, feeling and associatidigures 11and12 illustrate the building’s exterior
appearance as it was in 1928 and 2014, furtherostipg that the property meets Criterion A
(commerce) and Criterion C (architecture) in relatio the associated MPDF for Historic Auto-
Related Resources in the City of St. Louis.

Description of Property

Exterior Description

Setting

The parcel is bounded by concrete sidewalks ordise (Kingshighway) and south (Pernod
Avenue). A concrete walk leads from the primaryeon the east elevation to the public
sidewalk flanking the west side of Kingshighwayntacaping on the east side of the building
abuts the primary walk. This area is flanked byorete pavers that encircle low shrubs. A
temporary “for sale” sign with wood posts is lochteorth side of the sidewalk that leads to the
building. Three trees are situated along the ssidlth of the lot between the building and
sidewalk. The west end of the building is offsetabgoncrete alley extending north/south
(parallel to Kingshighway).
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East Elevation (Facade)

The facade (east elevation) of Brahm-Mitchellettetdd Car Company is clad with buff and red
brick. Buff brick adorns most of the elevation as@n original building material. Centered on
the facade is a two and a half-story tower thagegte slightly from the elevation. The tower bay
is capped by a hipped metal seam roof. Within theet bay at the first-floor level is the
building’s primary entrance composed of a singigdiglass and aluminum door with single-
panel sidelights and a single-sash transom. THdibgis address (3537) is painted on the
transom. Commercial style canister lights flankeéhé&ance. An original flat canopy roof with
supporting metal chains extends above the entrdimeecanopy retains original egg-and-dart
molding and decorative corner medallions. Abovesthigy at the second-story level, the tower
bay holds an arched window with a replacement aeg-one window and arched transom. This
window features an original metal balconet. A seradirched window is within the upper half
story of the tower bay. The fenestration holdspla@ement one-over-one window and arched
transom. Instead of a balconet, however, the upakistory window has a fluted terra cotta
flower box with decorative scrolled supports. Ardheick detailing caps the portion of the
tower bay that rises above the rooflihtos 2 and 3.

The remainder of the east elevation is divided fato bays, two on either side of the
tower/entrance bay. The bays are divided by buékipilasters. The lower level of the elevation
has red brick set within the building’s originasgiay windows. Above each in-filled window
bay are continuous bands of what were originakyedtory lights. These windows are currently
filled with contemporary one-over-one lights. Setdioor windows are similar to those on the
first floor, composed of one-over-one openings.sehgays originally held multi-sash hopper
windows. Canvas awnings are above the windows o efthe bays (i.e., four awnings on the
first floor; four awnings on the second floor).

The upper portion of the facade near the roof metariginal flat terra cotta coping and buff brick
headers. Flanking the coping on either side optiogecting central tower bay are decorative
scrolls. A decorative terra cotta egg-and-dart iceradorns the facade just above second-story
windows. Another band of fluted terra cotta spdwesdlevation above the egg-and-dart detailing
(Photo 4).
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South Elevation

The south elevation of the building faces Pernodre. This elevation is composed of five
bays similar in appearance to the facade. Baydiaided by buff brick pilasters. With exception
of the bay at the west end of the elevation, etfiloor bays are filled with red brick. As on the
facade, these openings were originally filled withate glass display windows. Clerestory
window bays (first and second floors) hold one-emee replacement lights. Awnings cap each
of the bays, obscuring original hopper windows @red with corrugated plastic), which are
situated above the clerestory replacement lights. West bay holds a band of six windows (first-
story level). Each opening is filled with a one-ce@e window. The bay immediately east holds
a single-light glass and aluminum door set withbouéf brick surround. This entry is offset at the
west by a single window with a buff brick sill. Ti@ndow opening is original and filled with a
wood panel. Offsetting the door to the east are ¢ierestory windows with a single shared
concrete sill. Fluted and egg-and-dart terra dedirads (similar to the facade) span the elevation
near the rooflineRhoto 5.

West Elevation

The west (rear) elevation of the building facesbey. The elevation is composed of four bays
divided by buff brick pilasters. First-floor windolaays are enclosed with red brick. Unlike the
facade and south elevations, these bays did rginally hold clerestory windows but were filled
with multi-light, steel sash windows (identicalttse visible on the second story level). The
northernmost first-floor bay holds a contemporargrbead track paneled door. Although the
door is not original, the bay is an original featof the elevation and framed in wood. The upper
floor of the elevation retains original multi-lighteel sash hopper windows. The elevation wall
rises slightly above the roofline and is cappedhuetra cotta tile coping?hoto 6).

North Elevation

The north (side) elevation faces an asphalt-paeeking lot. The north elevation is composed of
brick and concrete and void of any fenestratiofiodner door on the first-floor level near the
center of the elevation has been filled and paiotedt. A brick chimney rises from the roof at
the west end of the elevation. The chimney stackmposed of buff brick. East of the chimney
and flush with the north elevation, the enclosembile ramp rises above the roofline. The
original garage bay at the east end of the ramjpsme is partially filled and holds a single
pedestrian dooRhoto 7).
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Parking Lot

Adjacent to the building on the north is an asppalted parking lot (Photo 7). The lot covers
8863 square feet and accommodates parking for 8 smtomobiles. Based on the 1938
Sanborn maprigure 13), the lot dates to the same period of “construttas the dealership.

Interior Description

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company at 343KBgshighway is being redeveloped as a
mixed use (office/residential) building. The pragewxas originally an automobile dealership and
the interior reflects the building’s historic usethis capacity with open spaces, concrete support
columns with mushroom capitals, garage bays andretsramps that were used to move cars
inside the building and to the roof. As discussexV/jpusly, there are no plans to alter the
building in a way that does not comply with the i®¢ary of the Interior's Standards for
Rehabilitation.

First Floor

The first floor is open in plan with concrete waltencrete and wood beam ceilings and a
concrete floor covered with terrazzo. The primanireis centered on the east elevation and
composed of a single-light aluminum frame door sumgtound. The door is flanked by single-
panel sidelights. A single-light transom caps thire entry bay. The entrance is set slightly
lower than the remaining first floor. Three shallsigps lead from the primary door to the main
showroom floor west of the entry. The sunken emizarea and steps are flanked by original
wrought iron balustrade®fioto 8. The original terrazzo floor is visibl@foto 9. Photo 10
illustrates the entry area prior to removal of ifdenon-historic finishes. This photograph
provides a clear representation of the patternedzzo within the first floor entry/showroom
area. The first floor walls are composed of displaaydows on the primary (east) and south
elevations. Although single-light display openiigse been filled, original clerestory windows
are intact above these bayh6to 11). The north wall has no fenestration. The rears@wall
has an overhead garage ddé@ngto 12, which leads directly to the interior concretenps used
to transport automobiles to the roof. Near the @eot the north wall is an enclosed room
constructed of concrete. The roof is sunken angebdfin the east by a concrete platfoRhdto
13). Original concrete columns are noted throughbetfirst floor space. Some of the columns
are round with mushroom capitaBhpto 14. The others are square and faced with stucco
(Photo 19. The south wall has a secondary entry near tst @red of the fenestration. The door
is single-light with an aluminum frame (visibleRhoto 14). Concrete stairs leading to the

* Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, 1938, Volume 28, Sk@20. Note: The Sanborn Fire Insurance Map dhtes t
building’s date of construction as 1928 which isewlthe project was completed. Construction begaweler, in
1927.
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second floor are situated at the center of theffwer and near the secondary entry at the
southwest corneiPhoto 19.

Second Floor

In similar fashion to the first floor, the seconaldr is also open in plan with a concrete floor,
brick and concrete walls and a concrete ceilings &ast and south walls are composed of
continuous bays filled with brick, one-over-one danvs and upper original multi-sash windows.
The center of the east wall has an arched windovwith a replacement one-over-one window
below a fixed transonPhoto 17). As noted in Photo 18, the ceiling in this pantiaf the second
floor is ribbed, whereas the west end of the sedlmod has a smooth concrete ceiliiRhpto

18). The west wall is composed of continuous stedtirsash hopper windowsfoto 19. The
north wall has no fenestration. There is a congttigcase south of the north wall and an
automobile rampRhoto 20. This staircase and the ramp both lead to the tédike first floor
stairs, this set of steps is flanked by originatahband rails. The garage bay that leads to the
roof has been partially enclosed to incorporategle paneled pedestrian do&hpto 27).

Roof

A hipped half-story “tower” capping the facade’s\tal bay is situated at the central east end of
the roof. The raised half-story space encloseditatan room capped by a metal seamed roof.
The raised half-story has brick walls and origimiale-light, steel-sash awning windows. Above
the windows, exterior walls have decorative ardeck patterning. A chimney stack is visible

at the northwest corner of the roof, as is theas®d automobile ramp (noted previously). A low
parapet brick wall surrounds the ro®hpto 22.
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Section number _8 Page 8

Statement of Significance
Introduction

TheBrahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is a Spanish Revival style automobile
dealership constructed in 1927. The property, Extat St. Louis Independent City at 3537 S.
Kingshighway Boulevard (S. Kingshighway, preferreddpcally significant for its commercial

role (Criterion A) and its architectural contributionSrfterion C) under the associated

Multiple Property Documentation Form (MPDF), Historic Auto-Related Resources of St.

Louis (NRL 2005). Theperiod of significanceextends from the building’s date of construction,
1927 through 1944, the final year that the properyg used exclusively as an automobile
dealership. The building fits the MPDF contexidrketing and Servicing the Automobile in

St. Louis. The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is l@thon South (S.) Kingshighway,
which by the 1950s was St. Louis’ premiere locafmmpurpose-built automobile dealerships.
More commonly known as “Automobile Row,” Kingshigay’s nickname had originally been
associated with Locust Street in downtown St. Lowisere the city’s first sales and service
establishments cropped up during the early 190@st i the businesses on Locust Street closed
during or immediately after the Great Depressiofter®Vorld War I, Kingshighway developed

as the City’s preferred location for auto-relatedibesses, in particular, dealerships. The Brahm-
Mitchellette Motor Car Company was one of the eatldealerships to be constructed on S.
Kingshighway. The building is an exemplary examgdlés design and era of construction,
reflecting the period of time when building ownarsl local architects — not automobile
manufacturers — made design decisions about auiteyddalerships. An adjacent asphalt paved
parking lot north of the building (present by 1928ronsidered a contributing component of the

property.

Kingshighway as an Automobile Row, 1920 - 1950

St. Louis’ earliest dealerships date to the begigmif the twentieth century when existing
commercial buildings on Olive and Locust Streetsafrdowntown) were converted to house
businesses supporting the city’s rapidly growingpenobile industry. St. Louis was an early and
active center for automobile manufacturing. Thiswualarge part due to the city’s miles of
improved roads, which drew attention from bicydliahd individuals involved in developing the
“horseless carriage.” Locust Street in particulas\wattractive because between the cross streets
of 18" (east) and Channing (west),” the route was Stid'6anly street running west from
downtown without a street car lin@ Additionally, unlike many of the city’s streetsathwere
surfaced with granite and wood blocks or bricks;usi Street was smoothly pavédgure 14).

In 1895, the League of American Wheelmen claimed 81. Louis had “changed its position
from being the worst paved city to one of the leshe country,” supporting more than 45 miles

® Norbury Wayman, “St. Louis — Early Automobile Cajt Unpublished essay, Wayman Collection, Seri&.2
Louis, Available at Mercantile Library (St. Loulglissouri, no date), 3.
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of “surfaced” road§.By 1909, the City had more than 2,000 registergdraobiles on its
books’ By that time, Locust Street was rapidly developasgSt. Louis’ first “Auto Row,”
supporting numerous distributors, dealerships, Isugipres and repair shops.

South Kingshighway did not develop as an automatglger of activity until after World War Il
but its reasons for doing so were similar. Like lsicStreet, the road was smoothly paved and
largely void of streetcar tracks. Although S. Kihigghway supported a streetcar line between
Vandeventer (north) and Devonshire (south) Aventi@sroute was discontinued in 195.
Kingshighway was an undeveloped “outer road” crkériethe 17003° All of this changed after
1902, when Mayor Rolla Wells appointed a three-geimmittee to provide suggestions for
improvements to the old road in preparation ofditygs 1904 centennial celebration. The
commission published its report the following ygagposing a “crosstown boulevardfigure

15) that would connect all of the city’s parks, ciegta city-wide “park and boulevard systef.”
The road’s improvements north of Manchester Avemaee largely completed before St. Louis’
1904 World’s Fair but the sector south of Mancheaieenue remained unfinished for nearly
two more decades. South Kingshighway required widgand viaducts to carry the road above
the city’s central industrial / railroad corridevhich bisected Kingshighway at its juncture with
Manchester Avenu¥ By the time South Kingshighway was completed in18&0s, the
boulevard had been re-designed as an automobi¢ astreetcar — route, which was yet another
incentive for auto-related businesses to find theiy to Kingshighway® Unlike Locust Street,
physically bounded by downtown commerce (east)isnaestern terminus at Grand Boulevard,
Kingshighway was re-designed to serve as a nonttismnnector for the entire City of St.
Louis.

As noted in Table 2, the complete shift of aut@ted business from Locust Street to
Kingshighway did not become fully realized unti€th940s. The changeover was slowed
initially by the Great Depression and afterward/Mgrid War Il. It is clear, however, that once
auto-related businesses closed on Locust Streigigdiine 1930s and 1940s, they never returned.
Slowly but certainly, Kingshighway began to takesd as St. Louis’ twentieth-century

® Keenoy et al, MPDF, E:5.

" Ibid, E:6.

8 Ruth Keenoy, Karen Bode Baxter, Timothy Malonegt &tandy Ford, “Locust Street Automotive District,”
National Register of Historic Places Registratioorf (2005), 8:14

° St. Louis City Plan Commissiofihe Kingshighway: A Report by the City Plan Comimis§St. Louis: Self-
published, 1917), 4; Norbury Waymatlistory of St. Louis Neighborhoods: Southw({&it Louis: St. Louis
Community Development Agency, [1978]), 48.

'° City of St. Louis,Report of the Kingshighway Commissi&t. Louis: Self-published, 1903), 9;Tim Fakhere
We Live: A Guide to St. Louis Communitis Louis: Missouri Historical Society Press, 19950.

City of St. Louis,Report of the Kingshighway Commissi@n

2 The Civic League of Saint Loui8, City Plan for Saint LouigSt. Louis: Self-published, 1907), 57; L.R. Bowen,
“City Jail — Bellefontaine Farms — Fire Engine Hesisind Equipment — Grade Crossings and Viaduclierdale-
Lindenwood Highway,'Journal of the Engineers Club of St. Lo(danuary-February 1919), 88.

13 Wayman History of St. Louis Neighborhood&4.



NPS Form 10-900
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

OMB No. 1024-001

Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company

Name of Property
St. Louis Independent City, MO

County and State
Historic Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _8 Page __ 10

automobile row, surpassing all other major routesl{ding Delmar, Gravois, Grand and
Manchester Avenues) in supporting a concentratetbeun of automobile sales and service
establishments. In 1919, Kingshighway had no autol@alealerships listed in the city’s
business directory but the boulevard supportetliagfistation (2240 Kingshighway, Pierce QOil)
and an automobile repair shop (2265 Goetz Motop&ugnd Repair Co.). These were early
signs that the highway was beginning to attraab-zeflated businessés.

Table 1. Automobile Dealerships on Locust Street ahKingshighway, 1919 — 1945*

1919 1923 1927 1931 1935 194 1945
Locust Street 33 37 35 31 23 6 3
Kingshighway 0 2 2 5 9 26 32

*Numbers reported in the table include Locust Streewest of Jefferson and Kingshighway south of Oaklad
Avenue / north of Chippewa Street. Source: St. LosiCity Directories (Gould), 1919 — 1945.

Kingshighway replaced Locust Street as the Citg&hfonable automobile row because by the
1920s, the buildings on Locust Street were prol@sg amenable to auto-related businesses,
particularly dealerships. Dealerships evolved dtarably over the years in terms of how they
operated, more so than supply and repair shopsediiest dealerships on Locust Street were
frequently small shops with catalogs from whichtoosers selected their cars. Sometimes a
dealership held a single automobile for displayppses, but this was not required to make a sale
in the early 1900s. It was not until about “1920ewldealers began to demand that buildings be
constructed to ‘fit’ the automobiles they demontsitia This trend started even earlier in St.
Louis, with several such buildings along Locuse8trdating to as early as 194 As cars
became more affordable, customers demanded notmsBe what they were buying in advance
but to drive what they thought they might purchddgs required dealers to display more than
one or two cars. “Converted buildings [such asehms Locust Street] were problematic —
automobiles could not be easily moved in or oua$ting doorways, and interior supports
limited movement inside the building®

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company was on¢hefearliest “purpose built” automobile
showrooms to be constructed on S. Kingshighwayikédrihe dealerships constructed after
World War I, the building is more than a singlerstand reflects a broad architectural
movement — i.e., a popular style for many buildiygges (i.e., residential, commercial, etc.), not
just automobile sales and service facilities. Althlo the Brahm-Mitchellette dealership shares
architectural similarities with some of the dedhgps constructed on Locust Street during the
1910s-20s, there is one clear difference. The Brititthellette building has an adjacent
parking lot, constructed c. 1928 (and noted in FédLB) which Locust Street dealerships lacked.
This amenity became increasingly important for aales businesses over the ensuing years.
While it is true that customers preferred to patjaeent to businesses they frequented, an

! Gould, St. Louis Red-Blue Book (St. Louis: Selfofished, 1919).
15 Keenoy et al, MPDF, E:9.
' MPDF - E:9.
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adjacent lot also provided space to sell used éardlustrated on the city’'s 1938 Sanborn map
for this area (Figure 13), the lot adjacent toBinghm-Mitchellette dealership was in use as a
used sales car lot at that time. During the GregdrBssion and the war years, it became critical
that dealers sell used cars to stay in busitfeSsiginal owners Elmer Brahm and Joseph
Mitchellette did not remain business partners lafigr the 1929 stock market crash, but the
building continued to be used as a Pontiac deagetslough the mid-1940s.

Oakland-Pontiac and the Brahm-Mitchellette Dealigrsh

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company predakteshuilding that its original owners
constructed on Kingshighway in 1927. The busineggb in 1920, partnered by Elmer A.
Brahm (1899 — 1972) and Joseph Mitchellette (182964). Brahm and Mitchellette initially
sold cars from a one-story garage at 1049 S. Bayémue (not extant), approximately 2.5 miles
northeast of 3537 S. Kingshighw&yThe building on Kingshighway was designed by JBhter
Waunderlich (b. 1899). All three men, Brahm, Mitdeéle and Wunderlich, lived in close vicinity
of the dealership on Kingshighway. Brahm reside85&6 Lawn Avenue; Mitchellette at 5230
Tholozan Avenue; and Wunderlich at 4930A Tholozat929 and 3524 Lawn in 194Bigure
16).2° Where the business partners and their architet,|as well as the movement of the
dealership from a small garage on Boyle to a mofaiiding on Kingshighway illustrate two
important trends. One was the shift of Locust $se®uto Row to busy automobile
thoroughfares west of downtown. The second wagtnving residential sector west of
Kingshighway that attracted commercial developniemtiie 1920s.

The Brahm-Mitchellette dealerships on Boyle andgsimghway sold Oakland- Pontiac
automobiles, which were manufactured by Generabkéotnitially, Oakland was the name of an
automobile produced by Edward M. Murphy, an incoapar of the Pontiac (Michigan) Buggy
Company. In 1907, Murphy began assembling autoreslait his buggy factory to increase
profits and changed the name of his business t®#igand Motor Car Comparf) The earliest
Oakland was not manufactured but like most eadgranbiles, assembled using parts by a
variety of makers. Murphy’s first Oakland utilizadwo-cylinder motor designed by a business
associate, Alanson Partridge Brush (who initialtgheed his motor to Cadillac, which declined
the prototype). The first Oakland was slow to d&dlreplacement model, introduced in 1908,
utilized a four-cylinder engine but likewise haavfbuyers® The car did, however, catch the

" Robert GenafThe American Car Dealershiist. Paul, MN: Motorbooks International, 2004), 47.

18«The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Company’s New Hofhé&t. Louis Post-Dispatcfi3 May 1928). Gould City
Directories, 1925-1927; Sanborn Fire Insurance M&jiy of St. Louis, Volume 5, Sheet 104; Unite@i8s
Census, 1920, St. Louis Ward 13 (Roll T635_951 ePN).

¥ Gould / Polk-Gould, St. Louis City Directories,2®and 1940.

2 Arthur Pound;The Turning Wheel: The Story of General Motors tigto Twenty-Five Yea(&arden City, NY:
Doubleday, Doran & Company, Inc., 1934), 92-93.

“Beverly Rae Kimes, Henry Austin Clark, Jr., Ralphnioodie and Keith MarvirThird Edition Standard Catalog
of American Cars 1805 — 194la,WI: Krause Publications, 1986), 1050.
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attention of William C. Durant, originator of GeaéMotors?? Durant purchased half of
Oakland’s shares in 1909, placing the automobitieuGeneral Motor’s “umbrella” of
offerings?® “Oakland Six” was the most successful line to gatsix-cylinder model introduced

in 1913 but the sensation was short-lived. In 192heral Motors introduced the Pontiac, a six-
cylinder model that sold for the price of an Oakléour-cylinder. Afterward, both cars were
manufactured as Oakland-Pontiac. “Pontiac was @nig@GM [General Motors] history in being
the only offspring ever to kill its parent. AftedP@ntiac’s] smashing debut, the demise of the
Oaklanngbecame only a matter of tinfé After 1932, Oakland-Pontiac was no more but Pontia
endured:

St. Louis had several automobile dealerships thldt@akland-Pontiac models. As early as
1922, the Mississippi Valley Motor Company at 313/Locust Street (until the business moved
c. 1924 to 2801 Locust Street) was the only dedildributor listed as an Oakland sales agent.
Two years later, Oaklands were being sold by Spg@akland Company at 3536-38 Lindell
Boulevard, Angelica Automotive at 2and Angelica (which moved to 4231 N. Grand Aveaue
1927) and Brock Motor Car Company at 4418 Olive&trAfter GM merged Pontiac and
Oakland in 1926, additional Oakland dealers croppgeth St. Louis, including the Brahm-
Mitchellette Motor Car Company, Burgdorf Motor Coamy at 2719-29 S. Jefferson Avenue,
Goodloe Clay Auto Company at 5841 Delmar Boulewrd Sadlo-Faber Motor Company at
4933 Natural Bridge Avenue. The only “authorizedatership on Kingshighway that sold
Oakland-Pontiac automobiles was the Brahm-Mitcktellslotor Car Compansf

South Kingshighway was an ideal location for Bradmmd Mitchellette’s new Oakland-Pontiac
dealership, which debuted as “one of many new prise&rs located in Kingshighway Hills,
developed by the Cyrus Crane Willmore Co.” in t8€0s-30<’ Kingshighway Hills was
largely residential but also supported a major cenunal corridor extending along both
Kingshighway (north/south) and the intersectingeaaf Chippewa Street (east/west), which
served as St. Louis’ southern alternate for RoGté-&ures 17 and 18 Willmore’s plan for
Kingshighway Hills was singular in terms of whemperties were constructed. That is, both
commercial and residential properties were builitadut the same time, at least until the Great
Depression arrived, which substantially slowed cletign of the residential sector west of
Kingshighway. This was standard for all of Willm@reélevelopments such as University Hills
(developed in the 1920s in University City) andLlSiis Hills (developed in the 1940s in
southwest St. Louis City} Although the commercial development initiated bifiore’s

#pound, 94.

#John Gunnell75 Years of Pontiac: The Official Histo¢lola,WI: Krause Publications, 2000), 14.
% Kimes et al, 1050.

% Scott Bailey, Marguerite Kelly, Griffith Borgesoet al, edsGeneral Motors: The First 75 Years of
Transportation ProductéDetroit: General Motors Corporation, 1983), 43.

% Gould.St. Louis Red-Blue Bopk922 — 1928; Gouldst. Louis City Directory1930.

27 «The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Company’s New Home.”

% Fox, 167 and Wayman (1978),42.
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subdivisions in southwest St. Louis (Kingshighwald-and St. Louis Hills) resulted in a broad
swath of commercial development along Chippewaegticingshighway and (further west,
parallel to Kingshighway) Hampton Avenue, it wasyddingshighway that attracted a large
number of automobile dealershify<Once again, this relates to the route’s paved smmaface
that was void of streetcars, as well as the fattttie area was relatively free of any development
— ideal for sprawling modern dealerships with aeljggarking and used sales lots.

Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company was one ofehdiest auto-related businesses
constructed on S. Kingshighway, three blocks nofttihe route’s intersection with Chippewa
Street. By 1929, at least two more automobile dships existed at 3600 S. Kingshighway
(Grebe Motor Company, currently Ackerman Toyotague 9) and 3647 S. Kingshighway
(Hudson-Essex, currently AutoZorfagure 19). *° Despite the Great Depression, the
commercial corridor on S. Kingshighway thrived altgh automobile dealerships did not
become prevalent in this area until after World W#éFigure 20).

The Great Depression was, as noted in the MPDFeat drain on the automobile industry as
most individuals could no longer afford to buy autbiles.

Between the years 1929 and 1933, new automobi#s slabpped 75%.
Manufacturing fell to an all-time low in 1932; & iowest since 1918 [and] one
would expect the same to be true of automobilesteagion but quite the contrary.
Registrations fell by a mere 10% between the y&829-1933, indicating that
‘the automobile was firmly rooted in American cukby this period of timé!

The love-affair with the automobile was here ty stad this kept the doors open at many sales
establishments, including the new dealership omgghighway. New cars may not have been
available or affordable but used automobiles amds®on used cars kept many dealerships
open during and after the Depression®idevertheless, the Depression and war years took a
toll on the Brahm-Mitchellette partnership. Beftine end of the 1930s, the business was owned
by another individual, Charles E. Vincel, who ad&dd Pontiacs. Brahm and Mitchellette
continued to work at other automobile establishsmtt not togethet Like the earlier
dealership and illustrated on Sanborn maps (Figl@eand 19), the dealership continued to use
the adjacent north lot for used car sales even iafteas no longer owned by Brahm and
Mitchellette.

The pattern of activity at the Brahm-Mitchelletteotdr Car Company reflects what was
happening across the city in regard to automohit@rnesses during the 1930s-1940s. As

29 Wayman (1978), 42-46.

30 Gould, 1929.

31 Keenoy et al, MPDF, E:11.

32 bid.

33 Gould / Polk-Gould, 1929-1939.
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businesses on Locust Street began to close or dugatitional activities to remain viable during
the Depression, the dealership on Kingshighway ehemged its operations by selling and
servicing used cars. Vincel used the building &73Kingshighway as a Pontiac dealership
through 1944, after which time the building was @ianeously used by a toolmaker, Robert T.
Landis, Paul Schulte Motors and the Missouri Tefiaile Club®* Thus, 1944 marks the end of
the nominated property’s period of significancel®b4, the building was purchased by C.H.
Bowersox and until 2014 was used solely by Bowetssyrance Agency’

Significance — Criterion A: Commerce

St. Louis’ early automobile dealerships began aallsstorefronts that sold few automobiles.
Initially, such businesses required little spaceldng as storefronts provided walk-in customer
access, not much else was necessary. This all hegdrange by the 1920s and even earlier in
St. Louis, where automobile enthusiasts were aéddoecause of the city’'s numerous paved
roads. Granite, brick and wood were all considépadred” surfaces in the early 1900s and St.
Louis had more than most cities. The quality ofL8uis’ streets was an important reason why
many automobile sales and service establishmentslaeated on Locust Street and later on
Kingshighway, particularly the stretch south ofgmet day Interstate-64.South Kingshighway
continues to support numerous automobile salesarvice buildings, though most have been
converted to other uses. Few examples date todtedoof construction that is represented by
the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company. Most @estips on Kingshighway were
constructed after World War 1l. Within two blockerth and south of the Brahm-Mitchellette
dealership (i.e., between the cross streets ofePdrkenue/north and Chippewa Street/south), S.
Kingshighway currently supports ten buildings comstied as automobile dealerships/repair
shops. These properties (including the Brahm-Mitelte dealership) are identified rable 2

Table 2. Automobile Dealerships (extant) within twdlocks of the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car
Company.

Address (S. Kingshighway) Date of Construction

3345 1949 & 1963 (2 bldgs)
3435 1946

3460 1977

3501 1956

3560 1977

3500 1952

3537 1927 (Brahm-Mitchellette)

** bid, 1939-1945.
% City of St. Louis, Active Building Permits. Avabiée on Microfilm at the City of St. Louis’ Comptiel’s Office.
36

MPDF, E:5.
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Address (S. Kingshighway) Date of Construction
3538 1962
*3600 1929 (one-story)
*3636 1940
3647 1927

*Two addresses but currently the same owner/propest.

As noted in the MPDF, one of St. Louis’ earliestgmse-built dealerships, located at 3900-3912
West Pine Boulevard (not extant), was owned by ¥e8uick Auto Company. Constructed in
1927, the year that a building permit was issuedhfe Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company
on Kingshighway, Vesper’s “Spanish Colonial Revisglle property was . . . was one of the
largest in the nation, [providing] space to exhittcars at one timé”Considering that Vesper
Buick’s dealership was touted as one of the larngette nation, the Brahm-Mitchellette
dealership must have been spectacular when it dpergibiting 25 cars on its showroom
floor.*® Space, location and design were all part of the fbr marketing automobiles. During
the 1920s, the design of the dealership becammporiant part of selling cars. The decade
sponsored a limited period of time in which theldinig’s owner — not the product’s
manufacturer — made all of the decisions aboubthleling, including location and the
builder/architect. This changed dramatically aféorld War Il when big manufacturers like
General Motors provided specific guidelines abauilding and designing dealershifsThis

was not yet the case when the Brahm-Mitchelletsdeiship was constructed and its owners had
a lot of influence in the building’s design anddtion.

By the 1920s, the automobile was no longer a fauslpurchase for the well-to-do. Cars were
designed with hard tops, heaters, doors and stafetyres such as mirrors and lights. They were
driven year-round and becoming increasingly affofeaAs more people could purchase cars —
either because of affordability or financing opsehcustomers began to make more demands,
requiring that auto manufacturers provided a vaéistyles, colors and pricing options.
Marketing became important as competition incredsaieen manufacturers. Part of the
marketing process was, as mentioned previouslydeaéership building itself. The more modern
and attractive the dealership was, and the moseacdealer had on his display floor to
demonstrate, the more profitable the busiff&&ssign, location and display options became
critical to insure a dealer’s success, particulaylyhe time the Brahm-Mitchellette dealership
moved to its new location on South Kingshighwaye Building’s corner location on a busy
thoroughfare was a marketing tool that served eagbenefit for any commercial enterprise. The
“store front [was] one of the dealer’s best adgerj mediums, because it” presented “the point

¥ MPDF, E:10.

38 «The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Company’s New Home.”
* MPDF, E:13.

““MPDF, E: 8-9.
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of sale” and a corner site insured “a three-dinmamali color merchandising panorama intended to
arouse immediate customer interést.”

One of the most important ideas about automobidedghips, even before Brahm-Mitchellette
was constructed, was that of location — where &nbas was located increased sales potential by
attracting more customers. In this regard, thetionaof the Brahm-Mitchellette dealership was
ideally situated on a busy commercial thoroughédrhe corner at S. Kingshighway (facade /
east elevation) and Pernod Avenue (south elevatfagitionally the business was a mere three
blocks north of Chippewa Street (Route 66), a majaomobile highway. The location was
attractive to local residents but more importaritlgrew customers who traveled Kingshighway
via automobiles and buses, many of whom did netilivsouth St. Louis City. South
Kingshighway quickly became a commercial corridideraits development as an automobile
boulevard. Among the businesses attracted to tite mere automobile dealerships, many of
which continue to operate today.

Significance — Criterion C: Architecture

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is a SphfiRevival style, two-story commercial
property designed by John Wunderlich in 1927. Téaetship is an exceptional example of its
property type on S. Kingshighway. As indicatedha aissociated MPDF, the Brahm-Mitchellette
Motor Car Company meets the registration requirdsirat “architecturally significant [auto-
related] resources should . . . retain the locatiaiie showroom and other distinguishing
features” such as the “sense of openness and dmadity provided by interior features”
including walls, floors, ceilings and “exposed sapelements** The building demonstrates its
auto-related use through features such as intexi@rior concrete ramps, open floor plan,
display windows, exposed mushroom cap columns arabg bays. Also significant is that
Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company reflects arsiperiod of time in St. Louis when
automobile dealerships were designed per the spatodins of individual business owners — not
manufacturers. Such buildings reflect traditionkglas about how commercial buildings should
appear. For example, many of the purpose-builtetlglaips on Locust Street that stand today are
similar in design to other types of commercial Bings constructed downtown. These buildings
reflect popular architectural styles and their&ineal components imitate other types of
commercial properties. Some differences, such ass@ed display windows and accessible
features for getting cars in and out of buildings present but overall, these buildings reflect
pre-World War Il era construction methodologiese Brahm-Mitchellette dealership at 3537 S.
Kingshighway bears many similarities to the Citgalier Locust Street dealerships. The
building was constructed during a time when purgos# dealerships adapted modern ideas
about location and access, while continuing to @iergte traditional architectural styles. After
1946, dealerships looked different and they werestacted differently as well.

*! Genat, 45.
2 Keenoy et al., MPDF, F:36.
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Most of the examples of automobile dealerships mgghighway largely reflect mid-twentieth-
century trends in St. Louis’ automobile sales amtise establishments. Very few were
constructed that appear similar to the Brahm-Milelte Motor Car Company because shortly
after the dealership opened, the nation’s econaitgpsed. The Great Depression stagnated
investment and growth in the automobile industrykars. Afterward, though the nation’s
economy rebounded, automobiles were not manufatage@utomobile companies began to
support the war effort by producing bombs, airptaaed military-use vehicles. Few people
bought new cars in the 1930s, and in the 1940&ddaps had no new model vehicles for sale.
The lag in automobile industry-related servicesttedlow development of Kingshighway as a
dealership row. By the 1950s, when Locust Streatnealonger the city’'s most active center for
automobile businesses, dealerships no longer rdedrtite buildings constructed prior to World
War |l.

The Brahm-Mitchellette dealership’s stylistic irdlice, Spanish Revival, was frequently used for
automobile dealerships constructed in the 1910€94,3Bough it was never as popular as Art
Deco. Within the Locust Street Historic DistrictRN, 2005), at least six buildings incorporate
Spanish Revival and Mission influences, includifg 3 Olive (constructed in 1929, Mission),
2920 Locust (constructed in 1916, Spanish Reviddlp0 Locust (constructed in 1927, Spanish
Revival), 3027 Locust (constructed in 1917, SpaRskival) and 3037 Locust (constructed in
1916, MissionY The examples on Locust, as is the Brahm-Mitchtelléealership, are two-
stories in height. Although on Locust this occooe (a two-story, Spanish-Revival style
dealership) is frequent; such is not the case fétii®gshighway. Within the most prominent
stretch of automobile dealerships (south of Arsandl north of Chippewa Avenues) on S.
Kingshighway, the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Caany is the only example of its style and
composition.

The Spanish-Revival style emerged following theifGalia-Pacific Exposition of 1915, held in
San Diego to commemorate the opening of the Paizanal in 1914. The event’s lead architect,
Bertram Grosvenor Goodhue, introduced buildingh@texposition that incorporated a mixture
of “Moorish, Byzantine, and Renaissance detailoften based on prototypes in Spaffi®ut of
this came both Mission and Spanish-Revival styfleiémces that were fashionable in the 1910s-
30s and not just for housiffgCommercial architecture was also a popular form of
demonstrating these eclectic movements, as denatetoy the aforementioned dealerships on
Locust Street, as well as the commercial buildingsingshighway Hills (south of the
dealership), constructed during the late 1920sufEr)17-18).

*3 Missouri Department of Natural Resources, HistBrieservation. National Register listings for thiy 6f St.
Louis. Available at: http://www.dnr.mo.gov/shpo/8tlisCity.htm (Access date: 27 January 2015).

*4 Rachel CarleyThe Visual Dictionary of American Domestic Architee (New York: Henry Holt and Company,
1994), 196.

** Ibid.



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-001
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company
Name of Property

National Register of Historic Places | St Louis Independent City, MO

; : County and State
Continuation Sheet Historic Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

Section number _8 Page _ 18

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company was (ated@reviously) designed by John
Waunderlich, who is identified as an architect ity clirectories and census records. Little is
known about Wunderlich’s architectural contribusoiio date, research has failed to associate
him with any other commission, but it is likely el a lot of work in south St. Louis City where
he resided. It appears that he had a social re&dtip with Brahm (and possibly Mitchellette), as
he lived next door to Elmer BrahtfiNo expense appears to have been spared in Watderli
new design for the dealership on Kingshighway. bidding’s exterior embellishments include
custom-made terra cotta embellishments (intact)dbiaoff the modern display windows
spanning the building’s facade and south elevaiitve. interior was modern as well. Customer-
service areas had terrazzo patterned floors (tacinze radiators (some intact) and
decoratively painted ceilings. Automobile-serviceas had exposed concrete floors and smooth
concrete ramps (both intact) so that cars couléds#y moved and the service areas easily kept
clean?’ The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is a wei@nd early example of the many
automobile dealerships that were built along Séattyshighway Figure 21).

Most automobile dealerships on S. Kingshighway armause as auto-related businesses today,
as demonstrated by the buildings at 3435 S. Kimgstéay (Bimmers R Us, constructed in 1946,
Figure 22) and 3500 S. Kingshighway (Charles Schmidt andMBators, constructed in 1951,
Figure 23). As discussed previously, the Brahm-Mitchelleldalership’s architectural
significance is partially related to its physicahaonstration of the city’s older, multi-storied
dealerships near downtown. In contrast, most d&faifes on S. Kingshighway are typical of the
building plan at 3345 S. Kingshighwayigure 24) — massive one-story buildings with adjacent
paved parking lots. Constructed in 1949 as a d&algrthe property at 3345 S. Kingshighway is
vastly different in style than the Brahm-MitcheleeMotor Car Company and remained in use as
an auto-related business until very recently. TrehBi-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is a
clear example of the transition from pre- to posi-@ealership design, as well as the relocation
of St. Louis’ Auto Row from Locust Street to S. i§ghighway.

Conclusion

The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is an egkary example of an early twentieth-
century automobile dealership in St. Louis. Corwtrd at the advent of Kingshighway's
transition to St. Louis’ premiere location for amnobile sales and service buildings, the property
retains integrity of design, setting, materialsykwoanship, location, feeling and association. The
building meets Criterion A for its commercial impanmce as a premiere automobile dealership,
meeting the requirements and associated contéadieting and Servicing the Automobile in
St. Louis under the cover Multiple Property Documagion Form (MPDF) entitled “Historic
Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis [Independety) MO.” The property at 3537 S.
Kingshighway also meets Criterion C: Architectureler the MPDF cover document. The

“® Polk-Gould, 1940.
" “The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Company’s New Homé&328.
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building, despite alterations, retains evidencisodriginal style, interior details, structural
composition, automobile display window and garagg flenestrations that illustrate its use. The
building retains original features reflecting SgdnRevival architectural detailing. The Brahm-
Mitchellette Motor Car Company is locally signifita The period of significance extends from
the date of the building’s construction 1927, tlylouts years of use as a Pontiac dealership,
1944.



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-001
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company
Name of Property

National Register of Historic Places St. Louis Independent City

; ; County and State
Continuation Sheet Historic Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

Section number _9 Page __ 20

Bibliography

Bailey, Scott, Marguerite Kelly, Griffith Borgesoet al, edsGeneral Motors: The First 75
Years of Transportation ProductBetroit: General Motors Corporation, 1983.

Bowen, L.R. “City Jail — Bellefontaine Farms — FiEagine Houses and Equipment — Grade
Crossings and Viaducts — Ellendale-Lindenwood HigywJournal of the Engineers
Club of St. LouisJanuary-February 1919: 63-94.

“The Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Company’'s New Hom&g. Louis Post-Dispatcii3 May
1928.

Carley, RachelThe Visual Dictionary of American Domestic Architee. New York: Henry
Holt and Company, 1994.

City of St. Louis. Active Building Permits. Availabon Microfilm at the City of St. Louis’
Comptroller’'s Office.

City of St. Louis.Report of the Kingshighway Commission 19@3. Louis: Self-Published),
1903.

The Civic League of Saint Louié City Plan for Saint LouisSt. Louis: Self-published, 1907.

Fox, Tim.Where We Live: A Guide to St. Louis Communiséslouis: Missouri Historical
Society Press, 1995.

Genat, RoberfThe American Car Dealershift. Paul, MN: Motorbooks International, 2004.

Gould (Polk-Gould). St. Louis Red-Blue (Business)l £ity Directories. St. Louis: Self-
Published, 1919 — 1945.

Gunnell, John75 Years of Pontiac: The Official Histonpla,WI: Krause Publications, 2000.
Keenoy, Ruth, Karen Bode Baxter, Timothy Malonegt dandy Ford. “Historic Auto-Related
Resources of St. Louis [Independent City], M@tional Register of Historic Places

Multiple Property Documentation Forra005.

Keenoy, Ruth, Karen Bode Baxter, Timothy Malonegt Mandy Ford. “Locust Street
Automotive District,”"National Register of Historic Places Registratioorfa. 2005.



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-001
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company
Name of Property

National Register of Historic Places St. Louis Independent City

; ; County and State
Continuation Sheet Historic Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

Section number _9 Page 21

Kimes, Beverly Rae, Henry Austin Clark, Jr., Ralpimwoodie and Keith MarviriChird Edition
Standard Catalog of American Cars 1805 — 194, WI: Krause Publications, 1986.

Missouri Department of Natural Resources: HistBrieservation. National Register, City of St.
Louis (Available at: http://www.dnr.mo.gov/shpo/8tlisCity.htm). Access date: 27
January 2015.

Pound, ArthurThe Turning Wheel: The Story of General Motors digio Twenty-Five Years.
Garden City, NY: Doubleday, Doran & Company, 1i®©34.

Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps. City of St. Louis.Wio¢ 5, Sheet 104; Volumes 12 and 20, Sheet
2020. 1903 — 1951.

St. Louis City Plan Commissioithe Kingshighway: A Report by the City Plan ComioinsSt.
Louis: Self-published), 1917.

United States Census. 1920. St. Louis Ward 13: Re#tb_951, Page 21A.

Wayman, NorburyHistory of St. Louis Neighborhoods: Southw&st.Louis: St. Louis
Community Development Agency, [1978].

Wayman, Norbury. “St. Louis — Early Automobile Cahi’ Unpublished essay, Wayman
Collection, Series 2, St. Louis. Available at Mertilg Library, St. Louis, Missouri (no
date).



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-001
United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company

Name of Property

National Register of Historic Places | St Louis Independent City
County and State

Continuation Sheet Historic Auto-Related Resources of St. Louis
Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

Section number _10 Page _ 22

eneral Candy

{Company

g
<<
1°]

3
e
o

] i e | e A o ol i s s = =
Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company, 3537 S. Kingfighway (Lat: 38.594657; Long: -90.271675)
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Verbal Boundary Description

The boundaries of the property surround the lotegkked as 3537 South Kingshighway on City
Block 6068. The parcel definitions are 80.96 FT383T X 125 FT/125.03 FT. The property is
located in Kingshighway Hills Addition, Block 5, t$10-11.

Boundary Justification
The property boundaries include the entire parsgbeiated with the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor

Car Company constructed on the lot in 1927. Thenbaties include both the building
constructed in 1927 and the adjacent parking ldhemorth side of the building.
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Figure 3. Original clerestory hopper windows, secashfloor, south wall.

Figure 4. Original clerestory four-light windows above infilled display window bays, first floor, souh aII.
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Figure 5. Concrete columns are intact throughout tk building. First floor view is southeast.
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Figure 6. The building retains concrete ramps usetb transport automobiles from the first floor to the roof.
View is second floor, northwest corner.
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Figure 8. Second story windows, west elevation, acgiginal.
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Figure 9. The Toyota dealership at 3600 S. Kingshigvay was constructed in 1931 but has been alterethse
that time. View is southeast.
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Figure 10. The former dealership at 4315 S. Kingsghway is still used for auto-related purposes. The

building was constructed in 1938.
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The structure pictured below is one of thel
| many new enterprises located in Kingshighway |
Hills, developed by the Cvrus Crane \\'illm(_n"c
Co., Boatmen's Bank Building. where magnifi-ij
| cent apartments, residences and business blocks
stand on what was a wildernesy orly a few
years ago. 2

e

JOHN WUNDERLICH Architect

Figure 11. Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company in 1928 St Louis Poét-Dispéiéh. 13 May, 1928).

Figure 12. Brahm-Mitchellette Mtr Car Compay in 2014.
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Figure 13. Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, 1938. BrahnMitchellette Motor Car Company is at bottom right
hand corner (shaded). Note parking lot to the northwhich was used as a used car sales lot at thans.
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Figure 14. Northwest intersection of Locust (leftand 16" (right) Streets, c. 1915. Note the smooth surfacd
Locust vs. 18' Street. (Image used with permission from CampbeMHouse Museum, St. Louis. Not to be used
for reproduction or publication purposes). Locust Sreet was paved of this surface and void of streedcs,
which made it a popular area for early automobile athusiasts to establish garages and auto-related

businesses.
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Figure 15. Plan for Kingshighway (Source: St. LouiCity Plan Commission.The Kingshighway: A Report by

the City Plan Commission, January 23, 1917, n.p.).
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Figure 16. Map illustrating where the original ownes and architect for 3537 S. Kingshighway residechi

relationship to the dealership on S. Kingshighway(Scale is approximate, 1" = 0.25 mile).

Figure 17. Kingshighway Hills’ business district sath of the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company; view

is southwest.
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Figure 18. Kingshighway Hills’ business district sath of the Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company. The
dealership’s location is identified by the arrow inthe photo. View is northwest.
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Figure 19. AutoZone at 3647 S. Kingshighway was cstiucted as an automobile dealership in the late 29s.
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Figure 20. Sanborn Map, 1950, Volume 20, Sheet 20ZRrahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company is the
property with a “star.” (Image not to be reproduced or published, research purposes only). All of the
properties north and south of the dealership (on Kigshighway) were auto-related businesses in 1950.
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The structure pictured below s one of the
many new enterprises located in Kingshighway
Hills, developed by the Cyrus Crane Willmore
Co.. Bostmen's Bank Building. where magnifi-!
+| cent apurtments. residences and business blocks
stand on what was & wilderness orly a few
years uio.

™ Brahm-Mitchellette
, Motor Company’s

. NEW HOME

The new home of the Br: Alitchellette Motor Co.. at 3337 South
Kingshighway. is an exdmple of substantial business growth due to
the energy and aggressiveness of two men whose names it bears.

The business is owned and operated by Elmer A. Brahm and Joseph
Mitchellette, who began selling automobiles eight years ago. While
serving as salesmen. they saw their opportunity, secured the
agency for the OAKLAND and PONTIAC automobiles. locating
= their new venture in a small store room on Boyle Avenue. The
quality of their cars with the excellent service rendered by the new
Compan, Tred success. The agency grew from the beginning.
The$F new home came as a need. They applied progressive methods
and square -dealings in serving St. Louis. [he attractive building
at their new location is evidence of the public's approval and shows
) they have gained and held the esteern of their

the 'measure in whi

growing clientele.

JOHN WUNDERLICH Architect

@&

ing by the investment house of WOLFF-SCHIELI CO., American
Trust Building. They underwrote and are offering to investors the 6
First ‘dunglge Gdld Bonds secured by the property.

The <rection of this besntilul Buslding was 808! possDISE RS inEee Pl
) T

VIEW OF THE PRIVATE OFFICE. Note desks and office furmiture of the highest quality
supplied by the Comfort Printing & Stationery Co, 107 N. th St. All business pertaining to
finance is bandled through the Park Savings and Trust Co. Clayton st De Mun. The Fred
4 Schirm Contgacting Co. of 433 College Ave. was the general contractor and John Wunderlich
% the architect. The M. J. Conroy Plastering Co. of 3914 Peonsvivania Ave. executed the plas-

tering contract snd A. E. Mayer Plum Ty & Hesting Co,, 3163 5. Grand Ave, the hesting
of the building, installing the vapor besting control method. the show room being hested
throngh conc s covered with bronze grilles 3

VIEW SHOWING DISPLAY ROOM, with ample space to attractively display 25 automobiles.
The fireprool safe shown was supplied by the General Fireproofing Co., Arcade Building. The entire
Hogring 15 Art Mossic tile, installed by Arthur Girolami, 4234W Evans Ave, and the ceiling beauti-
fully decorated by the Rehm-Joern Painting & Decorating Co., 4233 chester. The building exterior
1s neatly trimmed with Terra Cotta from the Winkle Terra Cotta Co., Century Bldg. All our insur-
ance is handled by the Many-Blshd Insurance Agency, Pierce Bldg.
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OAKLAND ALL-AMERICAN SIX ~ $1045

Fast . . . silent . . . flexible . . . with luxury and comfort at every speed
The car_ with all !ho-c qualities that Americans admire.. e L

The world's lowest-priced Six with body hy Fisher. Embodying engin:
features offered in no other car'at

Figure 21. Full page advertisementSt. Louis Post-Dispatch, 13 May 1928.
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Figure 22. 3435 S. Kingshighway was constructed 946 and is currently used as a used automobile sal

business.
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Figure 23. 3500 S. Kingshighway was constructed 951 and remains in use as an automobile sales/deev
business.

Figure 24. 3345 S. Kingshighway was constructed 949 and until very recently was still in use as aauto-
related business.
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Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company. St. Louis Independent City, MO.
First Floor Plan and Photos 1-16.
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Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company. St. Louis Independent City, MO.
Second Floor Plan and Photos 17-21.
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Brahm-Mitchellette Motor Car Company. St. Louis Independent City, MO.
Roof Plan and Photo 22.
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